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The Caldwel House is located in the small community of Gardner in the north-
western part of Weakley County. Originally a village which, along with some
commercial buildings, included several farm houses, Gardner now is a small
collection of scattered farm houses of which the Caldwell House is the most
important.

Constructed ca. 1860 the Caldwell House is a two-story frame house cased with
weatherboards and covered with composition shingles which replace the original
wooden shingles. The eaves are decorated with paired brackets, and the corners
of the house are accented with paneled pilasters. The heavy cornice and
returns form a broken-bed pediment which is the major architectural feature of
the east and west elevations.

The center bay of the three-bay facade is enhanced by a double-leaf entrance
door surmounted by a fanlight divided to form two lancet arches. Paired, round-
headed windows compose the fenestration pattern.

In plan the house is U-shaped with the principal entrance and reception rooms
in one branch of the U. The other branch, which also features paired, round-
headed windows on the east elevation, originally housed the dining room. This
branch also is ornamented with a broken-bed pediment at the gable and paneled
pilasters on the corners of the east elevation.

In the interior of the principal branch of the house, a center hallway is flanked
by one room on each side. An interior brick chimney is located at each gable of
this section of the building, and the principal stairway rises from the passage.
Much of the interior woodwork of this section is original, including the

stairway and door and w;ndoy‘archltraves.

The original one-story front porch has been replaced recently by a portico with
four two-story pillars. Most of the original round-headed louvered shutters have
been lost. Porches line the inner parts of the U formed by the house; the one
on the north side of the principal branch is original.

A small frame building is located to the southwest of the house. It is presently
used as a shed for storage.

The property nominated, the tract on which the Caldwell House and outbuilding
stand, is owned ip its entirety by James B. and Dorlas R. Metheny. This tract
contains approximately 1.2 acres.
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Congressman William Parker Caldwell was born in Christmasville, Carroll County,

Tennessee, on November 8, 1832.

He attended schools in his native state and

in Kentucky and studied law at Cumberland University in Lebanon, Tennessee.
Admitted to the bar in 1853, he practiced law in Dresden (Weakley County) and
Union City (Obion County); he resided in the town of Gardner, which was located
midway between the _county seats of. Weakley .and Obion countles, and there he

built a house, the subject of this nomination, ca. 1860.
mayor of Gardner when the town was incorporated in 1869.

death on June 7, 1903, he located his law office in this house.

Caldwell's political career spanned forty years.

Caldwell was electe&
From 1879 until his

He served three terms in the

Tennessee General Assembly, two in the House (1857-59 and 1869-71) and one in the
Senate (1895-97). He was elected to the U.S. House of Representatives in

1874 and re-elected two years later.

elector in 1860, 1868, and 1884.

Caldwell was also a Democratic presidential

The Caldwell House is an example of the application of Italianate decorative
details to a basic vernacular form used throughout the nineteenth century in
Tennessee. This form, two-stories, one-room deep, with balancing gable-end
chimneys, was modified periodically during the last century, by the application

of current decorative elements.

In this way the house could conform to the

then popular architectural stylés without significantly changing its appearance

or abandoning this favorite house form.

The Caldwell House shows that this

response to architectural trends was favored by socially prominent and

politically powerful members of the community.

The major architectural inno-

vation in this house is the use of the U-shaped plan; this more than doubled the
floor space in the house and gave the owner the area of a large house while
retaining the single-pile form.

The present owners reside in the house and carefully maintain it.
operate a small antique sales business there.

They also
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History of Tennessee From Earliest Times to the Present; Together with an Historical
and a Biographical Sketch of Gibson, Obion, Dyer, Weakley and Lake Counties....
Nashville: The Goodspeed Publishing Co., 1887.

Obituary, newspaper unknown, ca. June 1903.
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at a telephone pole at Wesley Venable's northeast corner and runs thence north 253 feet
9 inches with the west right of way margin of said road to a stake; thence west 411%
feet making a new line through the lands of Wayne L. Hicks to a stake at his southwest
corner on Marvin Thompson's east boundary line; thence south 21° 30' west with Marvin
Thompson's east line 156 feet to a stake; thence south 61° 30' east 502 feet 2 inches

with Wesley Venable's north line to the beginning corner.



